#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

\*\*\*\*\*\*

2

1

3

4 5

6

7

8

9 10

11

12

13 14

15

16 17

18

19

20

21 22

23

24

25

26 27

28

Appellant,

VS.

E.K. McDANIEL, Warden of the NEVADA STATE PRISON at ELY, NEVADA; and CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO, Attorney General for Nevada,

ZANE MICHAEL FLOYD,

Respondents.

Case No. 51409

FILED

MAK 2 7 2009

THACIE A. LINDEMAN CLERK OF SUPREME COURT BY DEPUTY CLERKO

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

**Appeal from Order Dismissing Petition for** Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)

**Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County** 

FRANNY A. FORSMAN Federal Public Defender

12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28	<b>T7</b>	
	${f v}$	

# **TABLE OF AUTHORITIES**

2	Page(s)
3	FEDERAL CASES
4	Adams v. Texas, 448 U.S. 38 (1980)
5	Ake v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68 (1985)
6	Anderson v. Simons, 476 F.3d 1131 (10th Cir. 2007)
7	Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000)
8	Arave v. Creech, 507 U.S. 463 (1993)
9	Arizona v. Youngblood, 488 U.S. 51 (1988)
10	Arnold v. Evatt, 113 F.3d 1352 (4th Cir. 1997)
11	Atkins v. Virginia, 536 U.S. 304 (2002)
12	Baze v. Rees, 128 S. Ct. 1520 (2008)
13	Bennett v. United States, 390 U.S. 377 (1968)
14	Berger v. United States, 295 U.S. 78 (1935)
15	Brecht v. Abrahamson, 507 U.S. 619 (1993)
16	Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123 (1968)
17	Cage v. Louisiana, 498 U.S. 39 (1990)
18	California v. Brown, 479 U.S. 538 (1987)
19	Campbell v. Blodgett, 997 F.2d 512 (9th Cir. 1992)
20	Campbell v. Polk, 447 F.3d 270 (4th Cir. 2006)
21	Carey v. Musladin, 127 S. Ct. 649 (2006)
22	Caro v. Calderon, 165 F.3d 1223 (9th Cir. 1999)
23	Cartwright v. Maynard, 822 F.2d 1477 (10th Cir. 1987) 61
24	Casey v. Moore, 386 F.3d 896 (9th Cir. 2004)
25	Castillo-Manzanarez v. I.N.S., 65 F.3d 793 (9th Cir. 1995)
26	Chambers v. Armontrout, 907 F.2d 825 (8th Cir. 1990)
27	Chapman v. California, 386 U.S. 18 (1967)
28	

1	City of Chicago v. Morales, 527 U.S. 41 (1999)
2	City of Clelburne v. Clelburne Living Center. Inc., 473 U.S. 432 (1985)
3	Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722 (1991)
4	Correll v. Ryan, 465 F.3d 1006 (9th Cir. 2006)
5	Daniels v. Woodford, 428 F.3d 1181 (9th Cir 2005)
6	Darden v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 168 (1986)
7	Davis v. Georgia, 429 U.S. 122 (1976)
8	DeCecco v. United States, 338 F.2d 797 (1st Cir. 1964)
9	Deck v. Missouri, 544 U.S. 622 (2005)
10	Deutscher v. Angelone, 16 F.3d 981 (9th Cir. 1994)
11	Deutscher v. Whitley, 946 F.2d 1443 (9th Cir. 1991)
12	Dickerson v. Bagley, 453 F.3d 690 (6th Cir. 2006)
13	Dobbert v. Florida, 432 U.S. 282 (1977)
14	Donnelly v. DeChristoforo, 416 U.S. 637 (1974)
15	Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104 (1982)
16	Eldrige v. Atkins, 665 F.2d 228 (8th Cir. 1981)
	Emerson v. Gramley, 91 F.3d 898 (7th Cir. 1996)
17	
17 18	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)
18	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)
18 19	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)
18 19 20	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)
18 19 20 21	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)
18 19 20 21 22	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976) 48  Estes v. Texas, 381 U.S. 532 (1965) 36, 60, 61  Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399 (1986) 53  Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972) 48, 52, 72, 73  Godfrey v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420 (1980) 72
18 19 20 21 22 23	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976) 48  Estes v. Texas, 381 U.S. 532 (1965) 36, 60, 61  Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399 (1986) 53  Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972) 48, 52, 72, 73  Godfrey v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420 (1980) 72  Gonzalez v. Pliler, 341 F.3d 897 (9th Cir. 2003) 70, 71
18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976) 48  Estes v. Texas, 381 U.S. 532 (1965) 36, 60, 61  Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399 (1986) 53  Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972) 48, 52, 72, 73  Godfrey v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420 (1980) 72  Gonzalez v. Pliler, 341 F.3d 897 (9th Cir. 2003) 70, 71  Gonzalez-Rivera v. INS, 22 F.3d 1441 (9th Cir. 1994) 76
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97 (1976)

1	Groppi v. Wisconsin, 400 U.S. 505 (1971)
2	Hardnett v. Marshall, 25 F.3d 875 (9th Cir. 1994)
3	Harris ex rel. Ramseyer v. Blodgett, 853 F. Supp 1239 (W.D. Wash. 1994)
-	Holbrook v. Flynn, 475 U.S. 560 (1986)
5	Hurtado v. California, 110 U.S. 516 (1884)
$\frac{6}{7}$	Illinois v. Allen, 397 U.S. 343 (1970)
7	In re Murchison, 349 U.S. 133 (1955)
8	In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358 (1970)
9	Irvin v. Dowd, 366 U.S. 717 (1961)
10	Johnson v. Texas, 509 U.S. 350 (1993)
11	Jones v. United States, 526 U.S. 227 (1999)
12	Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986)
13	Knight v. Florida, 120 S. Ct. 459 (1999)
14	Lambright v. Schriro, 485 F.3d 512 (9th Cir. 2007)
15	Lankford v. Arave, 468 F.3d 578 (9th Cir. 2006)
16	Lankford v. Idaho, 500 U.S. 110 (1991)
17	LaRue v. McCarthy, 833 F.2d 140 (9th Cir. 1987)
18	Lawrence v. Armontrout, 900 F.2d 127 (8th Cir. 1990)
19	Lewis v. Dretke, 355 F.3d 364 (5th Cir. 2003)
20	Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978)
21	Lockhart v. McCree, 476 U.S. 162 (1986)
22	Louis v. Supreme Court of Nevada,
23	490 F.Supp 1174 (D. Nev. 1980)
24	Lowenfield v. Phelps, 484 U.S. 231 (1988)
25	Mack v. Cupp, 564 F.2d 898 (9th Cir. 1977)
26	Mak v. Blodgett, 970 F.2d 614 (9th Cir. 1992)
27	Mannhalt v. Reed, 847 F.2d 576 (9th Cir. 1988)

1	Mathews v. Edridge, 424 U.S. 319 (1976)
2	Mayberry v. Pennsylvania, 400 U.S. 455 (1971)
3	Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)
4	McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279 (1987)
5	McKoy v. North Carolina, 494 U.S. 433 (1990)
6	Medina v. California, 505 U.S. 437 (1992)
7	Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)
8	Morgan v. Bunnell, 24 F.3d 49 (9th Cir. 1994)
9	Morgan v. Illinois, 504 U.S. 719 (1992)
10	Myers v. Ylst, 897 F.2d 417 (9th Cir. 1990)
11	Offutt v. United States, 348 U.S. 11 (1954)
12	Outten v. Kearney, 464 F.3d 401 (3d Cir. 2006)
13	Panetti v. Quarterman, 127 S. Ct. 2842 (2007)
14	Payne v. Tennessee, 510 U.S. 808 (1991)
15	Penry v. Johnson, 532 U.S. 782 (2001)
16	Penry v. Lynaugh, 492 U.S. 302 (1989)
17	Peters v. Kiff, 407 U.S. 493 (1972)
18	Plyer v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)
19	Pruett v. Norris, 153 F.3d 579 (8th Cir. 1998)
20	Rideau v. Louisiana, 373 U.S. 723 (1963)
21	Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002)
22	Romano v. Oklahoma, 512 U.S. 1 (1994)
23	Rompilla v. Beard, 545 U.S. 374 (2005)
24	Rosales-Lopez v. United States, 451 U.S. 182 (1981)
25	Ross v. Oklahoma, 487 U.S. 81 (1988)
26	Royster Guano Co. v. Virginia, 253 U.S. 412 (1920)
27	Saffle v. Parks, 494 U.S. 484 (1990)

1	Sandoval v. Calderon, 241 F.3d 765 (9th Cir. 2000)
2	Sheppard v. Maxwell, 384 U.S. 333 (1966)
3	Silva v. Woodford, 279 F.3d 825 (9th Cir. 2002)
4	Skipper v. South Carolina, 476 U.S. 1 (1986)
5	Smith v. McCormick, 914 F.2d 1153 (9th Cir. 1990)
6	Smith v. Robbins, 528 U.S. 259 (2000)
7	Spaziano v. Florida, 468 U.S. 447 (1984)
8	Stewart v. Martinez-Villareal, 523 U.S. 637 (1998)
9	Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984) 8, 9, 11-14, 16, 17, 21, 82, 83, 85
10	Stringer v. Black, 503 U.S. 222 (1992)
11	Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S. 275 (1993)
12	Summerlin v. Schriro, 427 F.3d 623 (9th Cir. 2005)
13	Szuchon v. Lehman, 273 F.3d 299 (3d Cir. 2001)
14	Tison v. Arizona, 481 U.S. 137 (1987)
15	Townsend v. Sain, 372 U.S. 293 (1963)
16	Tumey v. Ohio, 273 U.S. 510 (1927)
17	Turner v. Duncan, 158 F.3d 449 (9th Cir. 1998)
18	Turner v. Murray, 476 U.S. 28 (1986)
19	United States v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97 (1976)
20	United States v. Annigoni, 96 F.3d 1132 (9th Cir. 1996)
21	United States v. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667 (1985)
22	United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648 (1984)
23	United States v. Garcia-Camacho, 53 F.3d 244 (9th Cir. 1995)
24	United States v. Lane, 474 U.S. 438 (1986)
25	United States v. Leon-Reyes, 177 F.3d 816 (9th Cir. 1999)
26	United States v. Lewis, 787 F.2d 1318 (9th Cir. 1986)
27	United States v. McKoy, 771 F.2d 1207 (9th Cir. 1985)
28	7/

1	United States v. Smith, 962 F.2d 923 (9th Cir. 1992)
2	Victor v. Nebraska, 511 U.S. 1 (1994)
3	Viereck v. United States, 318 U.S. 236 (1943)
4	Village of Willowbrook v. Olech, 528 U.S. 562 (2000)
5	Wainwright v. Witt, 469 U.S. 412 (1985)
6	Wallace v. Stewart, 184 F.3d 1112 (9th Cir. 1999)
7	Walton v. Arizona, 497 U.S. 639 (1990)
8	Wiggins v. Smith, 539 U.S. 510 (2003)
9	Wilkerson v. Utah, 99 U.S. 130 (1879)
10	Williams v. Taylor, 529 U.S. 362 (2000)
11	Wisconsin v. Mitchell, 508 U.S. 476 (1993)
12	Witherspoon v. Illinois, 391 U.S. 510 (1968)
13	Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862 (1983)
14	
15	STATE CASES
16	Archanian v. State, 122 Nev. 1019, 145 P.3d 1008 (2006)
17	Azbill v. Fisher, 84 Nev. 414, 442 P.2d 916 (1968)
18	Bean v. State, 86 Nev. 80, 465 P.2d 133 (1970)
19	Beets v. State, 107 Nev. 957, 821 P.2d 1044 (1991)
20	Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 1066, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)
21	Bennett v. State, 111 Nev. 1099, 901 P.2d 676 (1995)
22	Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 692 P.2d 1288 (1985)
23	Biondi v. State, 101 Nev. 252, 699 P.2d 1062 (1985)
24	Browne v. State, 113 Nev. 305, 933 P.3d 187 (1997)
25	Butler v. State, 120 Nev. 879, 102 P.3d 71 (2004)
26	Byford v. State, 116 Nev. 215, 994 P.2d 700 (2000)
27	Byford v. State, 123 Nev. 67, 156 P.3d 691 (2007)
28	VI

1	Calambro v. State, 114 Nev. 106, 952 P.2d 946 (1998)
2	Castillo v. State, 114 Nev. 271, 956 P.3d 103 (1998)
3	Chambers v. State, 113 Nev. 974, 944, P.2d 805 (1997)
4	Collier v. State, 101 Nev. 473, 705 P.2d 1126 (1985)
5	Commonwealth v. Miller, 139 Pa. 77, 21 A. 138 (1891)
6	Copeland v. Desert Inn Hotel, 99 Nev. 823, 673 P.2d 490 (1984)
7	Crump v. Warden, 113 Nev. 293, 934 P.2d 247 (1997)
8	Doleman v. State, 112 Nev. 843, 921 P.2d 278 (1996)
9	Dumas v. State, 111 Nev. 1270, 903 P.2d 816 (1995)
10	Earl v. State, 111 Nev. 1304, 904 P.2d 1029 (1995)
11	Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 28 P.3d 498 (2001)
12	Flanagan v. State, 104 Nev. 105, 754 P.2d 836 (1988)
13	Flores v. State, 121 Nev. 706, 120 P.3d 1170 (2005)
14	Floyd v. State, 118 Nev. 156, 42 P.3d 249 (2002)
15	Ford v. Warden, 111 Nev. 877, 901 P.2d 123 (1995)
16	Ginnis v. Mapes Hotel Corp., 86 Nev. 408, 470 P.2d 135 (1970)
17	Glauner v. State, 107 Nev. 482, 813 P.2d 1001 (1991)
18	Gonzalez v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 53 P.3d 901 (2002)
19	Green v. State, 113 Nev. 157, 931 P.3d 54 (1997)
20	Guy v. State, 108 Nev. 770, 839 P.2d 578 (1992)
21	Haberstroh v. State, 105 Nev. 739, 782 P.2d 1342 (1989)
22	Hawthorne v. United States, 476 A.2d 164 (D.C. 1984)
23	Haynes v. State, 103 Nev. 309, 739 P.2d 497 (1987)
24	Hollaway v. State, 116 Nev. 732, 6 P.3d 987 (2000)
25	In re Marquez, 1 Cal.4th 584, 822 P.2d 435 (1992)
26	In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 472 P.2d 921 (1970)
27	Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 537 P.2d 473 (1975)

1	Johnson v. State, 118 Nev. 787, 59 P.3d 450 (2002)
2	Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 923 P.2d 1102 (1996)
3	Lane v. State, 114 Nev. 299, 956 P.2d 88 (1998)
4	Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189, 886 P.2d 448 (1994)
5	Leslie v. McDaniel, 118 Nev. 773, 59 P.3d 440 (2002)
6	Leslie v. State, 114 Nev. 8, 952 P.2d 966 (1998)
7	Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 46 P.3d 1228 (2002)
8	Mazzan v. State, 100 Nev. 74, 675 P.2d 409 (1984)
9	McAllister v. State, 112 Wis. 496, 88 N.W. 212, (1901)
10	Middleton v. State, 114 Nev. 1089, 968 P.2d 296 (1998)
11	Minisch v. People, 8 Colo. 440, 9 P. 4 (1885)
12	Moran v. State, 103 Nev. 138, 734 P.2d 712 (1987)
13	Nevius v. State, 101 Nev. 238, 699 P.2d 1053, (1985)
14	Nika v. State, 113 Nev. 1424, 951 P.2d 1047 (1997)
15	Nika v. State, No. 46586, Adv. Op. (Dec. 31 2008)
16	Parodi v. Washoe Medical Center, 111 Nev. 365, 892 P.2d 588 (1995)
17	People v. Anderson, 70 Cal.2d 15, 447 P.3d 442 (Cal. 1968)
18	People v. Phillips, 64 Cal.2d 574, 414 P.2d 353 (1966)
19	People v. Stanworth, 11 Cal.3d 588, 522 P.2d 1058 (1974)
20	Rippo v. State, 113 Nev. 1239, 946 P.2d 1017 (1997)
21	Salazar v. State, 107 Nev. 982, 823 P.2d 273 (1991)
22	Slaked v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 5 P.3d 280 (Colo. 2000)
23	Spraguea v. Brown, 114 Nev. 1384, 971 P.2d 801 (1999)
24	State v. Carter, 66 Ariz. 12, 182 P.2d 90 (1947)
25	State v. Hall, 105 Nev. 7, 768 P.2d 349 (Nev. 1989)
26	State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 865 P.2d 322 (1993)
27	State v. Pedersen, 802 P.2d 1328 (Utah App. 1990)
امما	

1	State v. Smith, 707 P.2d 289 (Ariz. 1985)	77
2	Tabish v. State, 119 Nev. 293, 72 P.3d 584 (Nev. 2003)	64
3	Warden v. Lischko, 90 Nev. 221, 523 P.2d 6 (1974)	17
4	Weber v. State, 121 Nev. 554, 119 P.3d 107 (2005)	28
5	Williams v. State, 113 Nev. 1008, 945 P.2d 438 (1997)	46
6	Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989)	16
7	STATE STATUTES	
8	NRS 171.204	"
9		
10	NRS 173.115	
11	NRS 174.165	
12	NRS 175.031	
13	NRS 175.552(3)	
14	NRS 175.554(3)	
15	NRS 177.055(2)	
16	NRS 200.020	
17	NRS 200.033(3)	
18	NRS 200.033(9)	
19	NRS 34.726	84
20	NRS 34.726(1)(a)	
21	NRS 34.726(1)(b)	
22	NRS 34.810 83,	
23	NRS 34.830(1)	82
24	OTHER AUTHORITIES	
25	1 W. Pleakstone, Commentaries on the Laws of	
26	England *258 (1765)	79
27	1 W. Holdsworth, History of English Law 195 (7th ed., A. Goodhart and H. Hanbury rev. 1956)	79
28		-
_	XIV	

1	Act of Settlement, 12, 13 Will. III c. 2 (1700)
2	American Bar Association Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Defense Counsel in Death Penalty Cases
3	
4	American Bar Association Project on Standards for Criminal Justice, Standards Relating to the Prosecution
5	Function and the Defense Function
6	6 Carri Geer Thevenot, "Supreme Court's Becker Falls to Saitta Douglas Retains Seat Political
7   Consultant Says Justice Hurt by Guinn v. Legislature	Consultant Says Justice Hurt by Guinn v. Legislature Ruling in 2003," Las Vegas Review-Journal
8	(November 8, 2006)
9	Declaration of Independence ¶ (1776)
10	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (Task Force on DSM-IV et al., eds., 4th ed. 1994)
11	Editorial "Brian Greenspun on Tuesday's Victories
12	Amid a Judicial Warning," Las Vegas Sun (November 9, 2006)
13	Editorial, "Nancy Becker has the Right Stuff State Supreme Court Justice has Faithfully and
14	Honestly Interpreted the Constitution," Las Vegas Sun (October 22, 2006)
15	Editorial, "Nancy Becker Must be Removed
16	Travesty," Las Vegas Review-Journal (November 5, 2006)
17	International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,
18	Art. 7, reprinted in 999 U.N.T.S. 171 (entered into force March 27, 1976)
20	Jeff German, "Far Right Targets Justice Becker
21	Supreme Court Vote on Tax Increase was Right Thing to do, She Says," Las Vegas Sun (October 15, 2006)
22	Jon Ralston, "Campaign Ad Reality Check," Las Vegas Sun (October 3, 2006)
23	Jon Ralston, "Jon Ralston is Impressed at the Clarity
24	and Brevity Displayed by Lawyer-Politicians,"  Las Vegas Sun (September 22, 2006)
25	LaFave & Scott, Criminal Law § 1.8 at 58 (2d ed. 1986)
26	Legislative Commission's Subcommittee to Study the
27	Death Penalty and Related DNA Testing, Ass. Conc. Res. No. 3
28	VV

1 2	Michael J. Mishak, "Libertarian Lawyer has More Issues Up His Sleeve Waters' Next Targets: Campaign Funds, Real Estate Tax," Las Vegas Sun
3	(September 16, 2006)
4	N.R.A.P 28(e)
5	Nev. Const. art. 1
-	Nev. R. Prof. Conduct 3.3(a)(1)
6	Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct Canon 3B(7)
7 8	Pratt v. Attorney General of Jamaica, [1994] 2 A.C. 1, 29, 4 ALL E.R. 769, 783 (Privy Council 1993)
9	
10 11	Sam Skolnik, "Who Owns Whom is Supreme Theme Becker, Saitta Race is Rife with Accusations," Las Vegas Sun (August 27, 2006)
	Sherman Fredrick, Editorial, "Voters like R-J's
12	Ideas Guess Who Hates That?" Las VegasReview-Journal (November 12, 2006)
13 14	Smith, An Independent Judiciary: The Colonial Background, 124 U.Pa.L. Rev. 1104, 1112-1152 (1976)
15	Thomas M. Fleming, Sufficiency of Evidence,  for
16	Purposes of Death Penalty, to Establish Statutory Aggravating Circumstance that in Committing
17	Murder, Defendant Created Risk of Death or Injury to More than One Person, to Many Persons, and the
18	Like-Post-Gregg Cases 64 A.L.R. 4th 837, 847 (1988)
19	U.S. Const. amend. V
20	U.S. Const. amend. VI
21	U.S. Const. amend. VIII
	U.S. Const. amend. XIV
22	W. Stubbs, Select Charters 531 (5th ed. 1884)
23	Wharton, Criminal Evidence § 2.2 (15th ed. 1997)
24	
25	
26	
27	

#### I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant, Zane Floyd, was convicted of first-degree murder and sentenced to death by a jury in Clark County in 2000. 7 App 1374-1384; 11 App 2051-2057; 11 App 2096-2099. This appeal is from the dismissal of his Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by the Eighth Judicial District Court. 37 App 7411-18; 37 App 7420-7425.

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