1 IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
2
3
4

5 ZANE MICHAEL FLOYD,

6 Appellant,

7 v.

8 THE STATE OF NEVADA,

9 Respondent.

) Case No. 51409
)
)
)
)
)

Electronically Filed
Oct 12 2009 10:27 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman

10
11 **RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF**

12 **Appeal From Order Denying Successive Petition**
13 **for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction)**
14 **Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County**

15 FRANNY FORSMAN
16 Federal Public Defender
17 Nevada Bar No., 000014
18 411 East Bonneville Avenue, Ste 250
19 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 388-6577

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Avenue

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

28 Moreover, Defendant claims that he filed his successive state petition within eight

1 months of “discovering his claims. This claim is without merit. The claims made in
2 Argument 2 of the Opening Brief have always been available to the Defendant. There was no
3 external impediment which prevented the Defendant from discovering and timely raising his
4 claims of ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel.

5 Finally, Defendant’s passing reference that he filed his successive state petition within
6 14 days of the federal remand order is irrelevant. State procedural bars operate independent
7 of federal rules and the remand order was not a prerequisite for the Defendant to file a state
8 petition. Therefore, nothing stated in Defendant’s brief constitutes good cause and the
9 district court’s holding that he was subject to the time-bar should be affirmed.

10
11 **B. Defendant’s Claims Were Procedurally Barred Under The Law Of The
Case Doctrine.**

12 Defendant alleges that his post-conviction counsel was ineffective because he failed
13 to raise claims that had previously been raised in his direct appeal and first habeas petition.
14 The district court denied these claims because they had been previously denied on the merits
15 and constituted law of the case. 37AA 7413. Nothing in the Defendant’s Opening Brief
16 provides any support to disturb the district court’s ruling.

17 When an issue has already been decided on the merits by the Nevada Supreme Court,
18 the Court’s ruling is law of the case, and the issue will not be revisited. Hall v. State, 91 Nev.
19 314, 315-16, 535 P.2d 797, 798-99 (1975); Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 884-85, 34 P.3d at 535-
20 36. The law of a first appeal is the law of the case in all later appeals in which the facts are
21 substantially the same; this doctrine “cannot be avoided by more detailed and precisely
22 focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous proceedings. Hall,
23 91 Nev. 314, 535 P.2d 797. Any claim Defendant raised in his successive habeas petition,
24 upon which the Nevada Supreme Court has previously determined on the merits, is barred
25 by the law of the case doctrine.

26 The district court properly held that Defendant’s following claims B(2)(a)(v),
27 B(2)(b)(i)(a-f), B(2)(d)(i), B(2)(d)(iii), B(2)(d)(iv), B(2)(d)(viii) and B(2)(e) are all
28 procedurally barred, as all of these issues had been previously raised and addressed by this

1 Court on direct appeal. JN 76-99. Defendant does not allege a single reason why the law of
2 the case doctrine would not apply to these claims. Therefore, this Court should affirm the
3 district courts ruling regarding these matters.

4 **C. The District Court Properly Denied The Defendant's**
5 **Remaining Claims Without Conducting An Evidentiary**
6 **Hearing.**

7 1. The district court provided defendant with a fair evidentiary hearing.

8 Defendant claims his rights were violated when the district court failed to conduct an
9 evidentiary hearing on several issues raised in his successive Petition for Writ of Habeas
10 Corpus. The district court limited the evidentiary hearing to whether first post-conviction
11 counsel was ineffective for not raising the issue of “organic brain damage in the earlier
12 habeas petition. 37AA 7346-47. The district court properly determined that an evidentiary
13 hearing was not needed on every issue raised in his petition.⁹

14 The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
15 expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.
16 1328, 1331, 885 P.2d 603, 605 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228,
17 1231 (2002). A defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by
18 specific factual allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief, unless the factual
19 allegations are belied by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331; 885 P.2d at 605. (1994);
20 See also Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 503, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984) (1984) (holding
21 that “[a] defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing on
22 factual allegations belied or repelled by the record). “A claim is ‘belied’ when it is
23 contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the claim was made.

24 ⁹ Defendant cites to Panetti v. Quarterman, 551 U.S. 930, 127 S.Ct. 2842 (2007) for support
25 of his position. However, Pannetti specifically limits itself to constitutional protections
26 involved in a competency hearing in lieu of a stay of execution when a prisoner has made a
27 threshold showing of insanity. Panetti, 551 at 947-50, 127 S.Ct. at 2855-56. Due to the
28 nature of such a claim, it could not be brought up in an earlier proceeding and thus is not
procedurally barred. Panetti, 551 at 942-47, 127 S.Ct. at 2852-55. Therefore, the Panetti
decision is limited to the factual situation raised in that case and is not relevant to the matters
in the instant case.

1 Mann, 118 Nev. at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). “Bare and “naked allegations are not
2 sufficient to entitle a defendant for relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

3 In this case, Defendant’s claims were either belied by the record and/or should have
4 been raised in an earlier proceeding and thus procedurally barred. Additionally, as stated
5 above, several claims were previously decided upon by this Court in an earlier proceeding
6 and therefore barred by the law of the case doctrine. Thus, the district court correctly limited
7 the evidentiary hearing to the “organic brain damage issue.

8 2. Defendant’s claims regarding jury selection.

9 Defendant alleges that his trial attorneys were ineffective during the voir dire
10 proceedings because they did not object to alleged arbitrary time limit¹⁰, did not “life
11 qualify the jury, failed to get two alleged bias jurors off the jury panel and dismissed jurors
12 who were against the death penalty.

13 The Defendant fails to allege good cause or manifest injustice for failing to raise these
14 issues in a timely matter pursuant to NRS 34.726. Nor does he indicate any external
15 impediment which would have prevented him from raising these claims in a timely matter.
16 Therefore, these claims are time-barred. The district court also found that these claims could
17 have been raised at an earlier proceeding, since nothing in Defendant’s current arguments
18 indicate any external impediment. Thus, the Defendant’s arguments are an abuse of a writ
19 and procedurally barred by NRS 34.810(2).

20 It should be noted that the Defendant failed to make a single cognizable claim that one of the
21 jurors seated for the trial was biased. Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 503, 511, 916 P.2d 793, 799
22 (1996) (citing Ross v. Oklahoma, 487 U.S. 81, 86, 108 S.Ct. 2273, 2277 (1988)) (if the
23

24
25 ¹⁰ Defendant claims that the district court “**mandated** that the parties complete the entire voir
26 dire in Mr. Floyd’s capital case by 2:30pm and cites to the record. Defendant’s Opening
27 Brief, p. 26 (emphasis added). However, a cursory glance to the citation belies Defendant’s
28 claim. The district court was stating what time it expected voir dire to be finished- “I had
once **estimated** that we were going to have this jury picked about 2:30. I still believe that to
be the case. 3AA 591 (emphasis added).

1 impaneled jury is impartial, the defendant cannot prove prejudice).¹¹ This Court previously
2 observed in this case that “every juror...expressed a willingness to consider sentences other
3 than death in the event of a guilty verdict. Floyd, 118 Nev. at 165, 42 P.3d at 256.

4 Therefore, even if this Court considered Defendant’s new allegations, any such error
5 would be harmless because the jury impaneled was impartial. Thus this Court should affirm
6 the district court’s denial of the claim.

7 3. Defendant’s change of venue claim.

8 The lower court properly dismissed this claim finding that it was barred by the law of
9 the case doctrine because it was raised in Defendant’s direct appeal. 37AA 7413. This Court
10 denied this claim in the past and there was no reason set forth by the Defendant why the
11 decision should be revisited. Floyd v. State, 118 Nev. 156, 165, 42 P.3d 249, 255-56 (2002).
12 This claim is also barred by NRS 34.726 as untimely and by NRS 34.810 (2) as an abuse of
13 writ.

14 4. Defendant’s claims regarding prosecutorial misconduct.

15 The lower court dismissed these claims finding that they were barred by the law of
16 the case doctrine because these issues were raised in both Defendant’s direct appeal and his
17 first post-conviction petition. 37AA 7413. The district court also found that this Court
18 upheld the denial of these claims in the past and that there was no reason to revisit this
19 Court’s findings. 37AA 7413-14; JN 91-92; JN 170-178; also see Floyd, 118 Nev. at 172-
20 174, 42 P.3d at 260-61. These claims are also barred by NRS 34.726 as untimely and by
21 NRS 34.810 (2) as an abuse of writ.

22
23
24 ¹¹ Defendant only brings up two alleged “biased jurors. One, Tammy Hanlon was removed
25 due to Defendant’s peremptory strike and thus should not be considered in the analysis.
26 Wesley, 112 Nev. at 511, 916 P.2d at 799. Defendant misconstrues the statements of the
27 other one, Gertrude Curl-Leatherwood. Defendant alleges that Ms. Curl-Leatherwood
28 claimed that that she could not consider life with parole. However, Ms. Curl-Leatherwood
told the trial court that she could consider all four possible outcomes of trial and would
consider life with the possibility of parole. 4AA 637. Thus, Defendant was not prejudiced by
her presence on the jury.

1 5. Defendant's claim that Nevada's death penalty does not satisfy state or Federal
2 constitutional standards should be denied because this claim has been
3 previously rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court.

4 Defendant alleges that the use of lethal injection constitutes cruel and unusual
5 punishment. This claim is time-barred under NRS 34.726. It is also barred under NRS
6 34.810 because this issue could have been raised on appeal or in Defendant's first post-
7 conviction petition. Defendant does not explain nor offer good cause for his delay in raising
8 this issue. As such, this claim is procedurally barred.

9 Moreover, Defendant's use of post-conviction habeas petition to challenge the
10 constitutionality of Nevada's execution protocol has recently been rejected by this Court.
11 McConnell v. State, 212 P.3d 307, 311 (Nev. 2009). This Court held that a "challenge to the
12 lethal injection protocol in Nevada does not implicate the validity of a death sentence
13 because it does not challenge the death sentence itself but seeks to invalidate a particular
14 procedure for carrying out the sentence. McConnell, 212 P.3d at 311. This is because a
15 successful challenge to the execution protocol would preclude the Department of Corrections
16 from using a certain protocol but they would still be free to use another protocol to carry out
17 the sentence. Id. Therefore, the district court was correct to reject this claim without an
18 evidentiary hearing.

19 This Court has also previously denied Defendant's claims that the imposition of death
20 sentences in Nevada is arbitrary and capricious because it permits "juries an unlimited ability
21 to impose a death sentence, regardless of the circumstances of the case. State v. Haberstroh,
22 119 Nev. 173, 188, 69 P.3d 676, 686 (2003) (rejecting the exact same language used in
23 Defendant's opening brief). This Court has also rejected the argument that imprisonment on
24 death row for several years creates a presumption of inhumane or degrading treatment. Id.
25 Therefore, the district court was correct to reject these claims without an evidentiary hearing.

26 6. Defendant's claim regarding the State's alleged failure to preserve a blood
27 sample

28 Defendant brings up this claim for the first time in his successive habeas petition.
29 Defendant has failed to cite sufficient grounds of good cause and/or actual prejudice to

1 overcome the procedural bar. Defendant also failed to raise this claim in a timely matter
2 pursuant to NRS 34.726 Thus, this claim is procedurally barred.

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